
Park & Rec. Advisory Commission Meeting  Wednesday, January 14, 2009 1

City of Inver Grove Heights Minutes of the Proceedings 
 Of The Park and Recreation Advisory Commission 

Wednesday, January 14, 2009 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER:   
 
Chair Al Eiden called the January 14, 2009 Park and Recreation Advisory Commission Meeting to order at 7:00 
p.m.   
 
2.  ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Chair Al Eiden, Vice Chair Dennis Schueller, Commissioners:  Tammy Johnson, Joe Boehmer, Keith 
Joyce, Stan Johnson, and Jim Huffman; Park and Recreation Director Eric Carlson and Parks Superintendent 
Mark Borgwardt 
Absent:  Marty Silvi, Willie Krech and Recording Clerk Sheri Yourczek 
 
3.  PRESENTATIONS: 
  
None 
 
4.  ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
   
A.  You can find information regarding the City of Inver Grove Heights by visiting our Web Site at: 
www.ci.inver-grove-heights.mn.us 
B.  The next Park and Recreation Advisory Commission Meeting will be held on Wednesday, February 11, 
2009.  Work Session 6:45 p.m.; Regular Meeting 7:00 p.m. 
C.  Outdoor Skating Rinks are open.  Check the website for more information. 
 
5.  CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
A. Approval of Agenda 
 
B.  Approval of Minutes of November, 12, 2008 
 
Motion by Commissioner Huffman, seconded by Commissioner S. Johnson, to approve the Consent 
Agenda as presented. 
 
Ayes:   5 
Nays:  0 
Abstain:  1  (T. Johnson) Motion carried. 
 
6.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
None 
 
7.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  
 
None 
 
8.  REGULAR AGENDA: 
 
A.  Consider Recommendation for Mississippi River Regional Trail South of Concord Blvd. 
 



Park & Rec. Advisory Commission Meeting  Wednesday, January 14, 2009 2

Park and Recreation Director Eric Carlson stated a recommendation is needed from the Commission in regards 
to where the Mississippi Regional Trail will be routed as it goes along Concord and south through the 
Community.  A public meeting to acquire feedback was held on November 18th for residents south of Concord 
to look at alternative routes.  Bruce Blair is here this evening from Dakota County to discuss this topic further.  
It is Staff’s recommendation to go with Alternative 3 which goes down Concord Blvd., then along Cahill 
Avenue behind WalMart, from there it goes to Inver Grove Trail and then past the school. 
 
Bruce Blair from the Dakota County Parks works within the Facility Development and Natural Resource 
Management Department for Dakota County Parks and Open Space.  He is here to discuss potential alignments 
for a portion of the Mississippi Regional Trail.  The trail is about 20 miles long from South St. Paul to Hastings.  
It is divided into segments for planning and funding purposes.  16 miles of this 20 mile trail has funding 
attached.  The Master Plan has a few alignment alternatives.  We need to determine the alignment and then we 
can do cost estimates and then seek any additional funding.  The following are the four alternatives: 
 
 Alternative 1 - East side of Inver Grove Trail 
 Alternative 2 - West side of Inver Grove Trail 
 Alternative 3 - Concord Blvd/Cahill Avenue 
 Alternative 4 - Old Concord Blvd. 
 
He gave the following comparisons on the impact the trail could have on the above alternatives: 
 
 Alternative 1:  There are 28 driveways and 38 parcels 
 Alternative 2:  20 driveways and 32 parcels 
 Alternative 3:  No driveways and 4 four parcels 
 Alternative 4:  7 driveways and 7 parcels 
 
Following are cost estimates of the alternatives.  Some alternatives would involve the installation of walls.  
Estimates are provided with or without walls: 
 
   With Walls    Without Walls 
 Alternative 1:   $2,900,000.00    $587,000.00 
 Alternative 2: $4,500,000.00    $596,000.00 
 Alternative 3: $495,000.00    $495,000.00 
 Alternative 4: $704,000.00    $704,000.00 
 
Commissioner Huffman stated Alternative 3 had the same costs for both options. 
 
Mr. Blair responded there was no need for walls on that route. 
He continued to say that at the November Open House they encouraged resident to write comments.  The 
Commission should have copies of that information.  He would like to emphasize a few comments they 
received.  One landowner felt the trail project should buy down the street assessment on Cahill Avenue.  
Another stated they already have unwelcome public use on their property and another is looking forward to the 
trail completion.  The overall alignment preference is #3.   
There are pros and cons associated with the project as well.  Some of the cons would be the wetland impact, loss 
of trees, and the impact to adjacent landowners. 
The next step would be to forward your recommendation onto the City Council. 
 
Director Carlson said the City Council would review it either January 26th or at the first meeting in February. 
 
Mr. Blair was okay with that.  After the City reviews it, Dakota County has the Park and Recreation Advisory 
Committee take a look at it and then it goes before the County Board. 
 
Chair Eiden asked what the distance of the section was here? 
 



Park & Rec. Advisory Commission Meeting  Wednesday, January 14, 2009 3

Mr. Blair stated it is over ½ mile.  That number is based off the shorter route. 
 
Chair Eiden asked what the sources were for the pros and cons?  Were they public comments, County people? 
 
Mr. Blair said it was all of those, but this list was compiled before the November open house. 
 
Dave Steimer, 9327 Inver Grove Trail, stated the trail length of ½ mile didn’t seem correct.  Inver Grove Trail is 
2 miles long.  He asked if there were any plans to illuminate the trail at night? 
 
Mr. Blair said they do not light the trail except under certain circumstances such as it going under a bridge, etc.  
In response to the length of the trail, the ½ mile is if they go the Concord route. 
 
Mary Ann Richter, 10192 Inver Grove Trail, asked if they have the piece going from the school funded? 
 
Mr. Blair said that piece of the alignment is included in a grant for trail construction.  We can build from Old 
Concord to Highway 52.  He stated the trail does pass her home and it is a funded section of trail.  He is unsure 
of the timing of the construction. 
 
Ms. Richter said she has not received any letters at all stating the trail will be going in front of her home, and 
this portion is already funded. 
 
Chair Eiden asked for the Commissioner’s thoughts so they can forward a recommendation to the City Council. 
 
Vice Chair Schueller said you cannot see the river from any of these options.  He felt Inver Grove Trail was too 
expensive, but was rustic for viewing.  Old Inver Grove Trail seemed to be one of the best options and less 
expensive.  It was also less intrusive with trees.  He felt Concord Blvd. was too urban for a trail.  It’s a busy 
road. 
 
Commissioner Joyce asked what his option would be?  Alternative 4?  He preferred that option. 
 
Vice Chair Schueller agreed. 
 
Commissioner Boehmer liked Alternative 3 better.  There is less impact on wetlands and trees and to the people 
who live on Old Concord and Inver Grove Trail. 
 
Commissioner S. Johnson also liked Alternative 3 for the cost. 
 
Commissioner Huffman also agreed with Alternative 3. 
 
Commissioner T. Johnson could not decide between Alternatives 3 and 4.  She liked both.  She asked what the 
cost difference was between the two? 
 
Chair Eiden said it was $200,000. 
 
Commissioner T. Johnson felt the grade on Old Concord was pretty steep. 
 
Chair Eiden commented Alternative 3 had the least impact on people in the area and the area itself.  Cost is also 
a factor here.  The only con about it is that it is along a roadway.   
 
Commissioner Joyce asked what the difference between a right of way and an easement was? 
 
Mr. Blair asked if that was for alternative 3?  If so, there is a .5 acre need.  He is unsure of where the location is, 
but it is dependent on Cahill too.  This alternative requires the least amount of public land.  They might need a 
little more from the school as well. 



Park & Rec. Advisory Commission Meeting  Wednesday, January 14, 2009 4

Commissioner Huffman asked how close this comes to residences?  
 
Mr. Blair said in terms of Ms. Richter’s, it is very close to her home. 
 
Commissioner Joyce sees trails as scenic byways.  He doesn’t see that as an option with Alternative 3.  He likes 
Alternative 4. 
 
Vice Chair Schueller said it does seem shorter to go down Old Concord Blvd.  The closest route would be to go 
up to the school and to Old Concord Blvd. rather than Cahill Avenue.  He agreed with Commissioner Joyce, that 
it is much more scenic to go Old Concord.  New Concord has streets and homes; Old Concord has some homes 
and trees. 
 
Commissioner Boehmer stated that if you go on Concord, you’ve got the businesses and the coffee shop there. 
 
Commissioner T. Johnson asked if the west side of Concord, through Arbor Point, would stay the way it is? 
 
Mr. Blair responded yes.  The new Concord has a portion of trail.  We have funding in other spots. 
 
Motion by Commissioner S. Johnson, seconded by Commissioner Huffman to approve Alternative 3. 
 
Ayes:  5 
Nays:  2 (Joyce, Vice Chair Schueller).  Motion carried. 
 
Vice Chair Schueller wanted it on record that himself, and Commissioner Joyce, both desired Alternative 4. 
 
Mr. Blair thanked everyone for their time.   
 
Chair Eiden asked when the City Council makes it final decision, when do you ask for funding? 
 
Mr. Blair said the deadline for the next round of grants to be awarded in 2013 would be in May/June. 
 
9.  ADMINISTRATIVE PRESENTATIONS: 
 
B.  Review Potential 2009 Park Projects 
 
Parks Superintendent Mark Borgwardt said he has compiled a list of proposed recommended park projects for 
2009.  While we do not have the money for all of them, there are nine listed in priority order: 
 
 1.  Heritage Village Park restoration, seeding, tree planting, and utilities extension. 
 2.  New bituminous trail along east side of Babcock Trail from 75th Street to Baldwin Avenue. 
 3.  South Valley Park bituminous trail re-construction between homes near Cahill and 73rd. 
 4.  Re-construct and enlarge Oakwood Park parking lot. 
 5.  Construct steel roof over Rich Valley Park ballfield dugouts. 
 6.  Rich Valley Park native vegetation around pond. 
 7.  Park property signage master plan. 
 8.  North Valley park disc golf signage and “T” boxes. 
 9.  New bituminous trail from 65th Street to lower parking lot in North Valley Park. 
 
Superintendent Borgwardt said in regards to Heritage Village Park, in the fall of 2009 they would grade it and 
put out black dirt.  They would stabilize the site.  It needs tree removal, restoration, and enhancements.  We can 
put the money into restoration, fertilizers, and tree planting.  After completion of this phase the next phase 
would be water, sewer, irrigation, and electric. 
 
Commissioner Joyce questioned if irrigation was a reasonable option given the bedrock in the area? 



Park & Rec. Advisory Commission Meeting  Wednesday, January 14, 2009 5

Supervisor Borgwardt said they need to take a look at that.   
The second item on the list is the bituminous trail along Babcock.  Utilities drilled a new well on Babcock.  
They need to get that online.  They are willing to help with engineering and grading of the trail extension from 
75th to Baldwin Avenue.  That would help make trail connections with the Highway 52 Trail.  They will pay for 
the grading done there.  Once that is complete we need to pay for the base and the bituminous. 
The next two projects, South Valley and Oakwood, are from our lifecycle replacement fund.  South Valley 
Park’s is near Cahill and 73rd.  It received a poor bituminous rating.  Engineering will be working there to 
replace some storm water damage. Once that is finished we can come in and restore the trail and put the new 
fence up by the neighbors.  Oakwood Park’s parking lot also received a poor bituminous rating.  They would 
like to enlarge the parking lot at the same time. 
 
Chair Eiden asked where they would enlarge it? 
 
Superintendent Borgwardt said to the north. 
The fifth item would be to construct a steel roof over the Rich Valley ballfield dugouts.  This would provide 
shade to users from the elements. 
Item six is to restore native vegetation around the stormwater pond in Rich Valley Park. 
 
Commissioner Joyce asked if there was an aerator in the pond? 
 
Superintendent Borgwardt responded yes.  It helps with algae. 
 
Commissioner Joyce asked what type of plantings would they do? 
 
Superintendent Borgwardt responded it would be natural shoreline native to the area.  They could plant Big Blue 
Stem, Little Blue Stem, and Blazing Star to name a few. 
Item seven is for Park Property Signage.  They are updating the signs in some of the parks.  They did a sign 
inventory and stone signs are in most of our parks.  Some of those are in bad shape.  They would like to improve 
the appearance and messaging on them. 
 
Commissioner Huffman asked how the lighting was at the Oakwood lot? 
 
Superintendent Borgwardt said they made a note of the lighting situation there. 
Item eight is the Disc Golf Course in North Valley Park.  It is in need of some new slabs, new “T” pads, and 
improved signage to make it more user friendly.  It is a heavily used amenity. 
 
Commissioner Joyce asked if there are any groups we can ask to help with funding?  There are no user fees 
involved with the Disc Golf course. 
 
Superintendent Borgwardt felt that was a nice idea.  They are always looking for funding. 
Item nine is the trail that ends at the lower parking lot in North Valley Park.  They would like to extend that trail 
north to 63rd Street.  Then you can walk from 63rd Street to 80th Street on the North/South Valley Trail. 
He concluded his list and opened it up to the Commission for comments. 
 
Chair Eiden felt item seven should be more of a priority.  It says something about the Community when you see 
the signage.  He encouraged them to get that done.  He liked that they have coordinated activities with other City 
Departments to get projects completed. 
He asked if he could get some estimates on each of the projects so they can have a better understanding of costs. 
 
Commissioner Joyce felt it was a good list.  He thought items five and eight could be tapped from users for 
donations. 
 
Commissioner Huffman asked if they could throw in an item on River Front Park’s parking lot?  Maybe they 
could get some estimates on that.  There is class five down there now, but it would be nice if they could finish it. 



Park & Rec. Advisory Commission Meeting  Wednesday, January 14, 2009 6

Superintendent Borgwardt said they can look into that. 
 
Director Carlson asked if they wanted curb and gutter as well? 
 
Commissioner Huffman just wanted it paved.  It’s very bumpy down there right now. 
 
Director Carlson thought it could cost about $2,000 to $3,000 to get it done. 
 
Chair Eiden suggested they make that item ten on the list of projects. 
 
Vice Chair Schueller felt the list was good.  He felt signs were important and key.  He asked about the Simley 
Island shoreline.  It’s grown up and hard to fish off of.  He was unsure if this was part of regular park 
maintenance or if it needed to be a part of this plan.  There is also garbage and compost along there too. 
 
Superintendent Borgwardt said they can place both Rich Valley’s Pond and Simley’s Pond together as one item.  
The DNR is interested in helping with shoreline restoration.  There could be grant opportunities there. 
 
Vice Chair Schueller said along the shore is very rough.  On some spots it is dangerous to fish off of. 
 
Director Carlson wanted to speak regarding signage.  A Staff member worked on that over the summer.  At this 
time, Recreation Superintendent Tracy Petersen has written a grant for the NRPA Healthy Communities.  If we 
get the grant, it could offer us funds to create and install way-finding signs along the trail system. 
 
Commissioner Huffman stated he has worked with Superintendent Borgwardt on a number of projects.  He’s 
doing an excellent job.  It’s a lot of hard work. 
 
Chair Eiden asked if they can get the costs of these projects. 
 
Director Carlson said he and Superintendent Borgwardt can get together and discuss funding and come back 
with that information in a few months. 
 
A.  Review Heritage Village Park Phasing Plan 
 
Director Carlson stated they hired Emmons and Olivier Resources Inc. to do some work.  They took all of the 
planning they have done on the site and interpreted that.  They have made significant progress in this park this 
year.  They expect in 2009 they should have the park graded.  EOR (Emmons and Olivier) will do a phasing 
plan.  Some phases will have to happen in certain sequences.  They need to get the site stabilized and graded.  
The first phase is to construct parking on site.  Improvements for this phase including the parking lot and other 
improvements are estimated to be $430,000.  This includes engineering and contingencies.  There is a 
spreadsheet that has the costs made up.   
The second phase is for additional parking and a building or shelter, playground equipment, lighting, 
landscaping, and construction of sewer, water lines, and irrigation.  The estimate for this is 1.9 million. 
Phase 3 is for construction of an outdoor amphitheater and another building for maintenance, as well as 
landscaping, lighting, and additional irrigation.  Cost estimate for this is 1.5 million. 
Phase 4 is for construction of an access off of 63rd Street.  That access is questionable at this time.  We now 
know we cannot get access there.  He has tried to contact them numerous times and is unsure as to why they 
were denied. 
 
Commissioner Joyce asked about the strip of land they have wanted to get? 
 
Director Carlson said his thoughts on the 63rd Street denial are that maybe they felt it would interrupt car 
storage.  Our thoughts are maybe they we can give them land to store cars.  He is unsure if the access is a done 
deal or not, but will keep trying to contact them.  If this crossing is successful, the cost would be estimated at 
$834,000.  It does not include land acquisition costs.  Additional money is needed for that. 



Park & Rec. Advisory Commission Meeting  Wednesday, January 14, 2009 7

Some of these projects can be broken down into smaller projects, or some group could take on a project with a 
donation.  It doesn’t have to be City money that funds it. 
 
Commissioner Joyce asked if at some point, Staff could break down the phases and get cost estimates. 
 
Director Carlson said that would be easy to do. 
 
Commissioner Joyce asked if there has been any progress on the Bridge? 
 
Director Carlson said the County Board met on Tuesday.  They passed a resolution to demolish the entire bridge 
in phases, leaving the Inver Grove Heights side of the bridge standing the longest.  This will give us an 
opportunity to come up with a plan and money to save the bridge.  The Mayor asked the City Administrator to 
send a letter stating the City would be willing to own the bridge for a short amount of time, under certain 
conditions.  He is unsure of the answer to that at this time.  Representative Joe Atkins and Senator Jim Metzen 
are sponsoring legislation to instill a moratorium on the demolition of the bridge.  That can slow things down a 
bit if it passes.  As of right now, the project lacks an owner and funding. 
 
Commissioner Joyce stated the National Park Service said it takes time to do the paperwork. 
 
Director Carlson said it could take up to three to five years. 
 
Commissioner Joyce asked if any historical research has been done there? 
 
Director Carlson said this is a Dakota County project, not the City.  The County has involved the Historical 
Society and they have been involved in the process.   
 
Vice Chair Schueller asked if the park itself will have enough parking.  Most users would be driving to this 
location.  Simley Island has four stalls.  People park across the street in the business lot if they need additional 
parking.  He would like to see more parking in the parks and not at other lots.  Maybe they can have an area 
where they can add more parking if they need it. 
 
Director Carlson said there are roughly 320 stalls for parking throughout the park.  It is similar to that of Rich 
Valley.  Depending on events that number could be exceeded.   
 
Commissioner Joyce said he was on the committee for this park and they did look at parking. 
 
Commissioner Huffman asked how many picnic shelters? 
 
Director Carlson said there are roughly three. 
 
Commissioner Joyce felt others could be added later in the future.   
He asked that when they get copies of maps in the future, can they get them in a PDF file at their homes so they 
can open and/or print them themselves? 
 
Director Carlson said color copies are expensive, that’s why they are not printed in color, otherwise, he would 
be fine with emailing them. 
 
Greg Sampson, 7540 River Road, would like to give some input on the Bridge.  He questioned an area at 66th to 
the south, closest to the river.  He asked if the City owns this? 
 
Commissioner Joyce said we have for a long time. 
 
Mr. Sampson asked about the tax forfeit property? 
 



Park & Rec. Advisory Commission Meeting  Wednesday, January 14, 2009 8

Director Carlson said they have looked into that but was unsure about the outcome. 
 
Mr. Sampson felt it would be a good addition to include that property.  That would be a good spot to put a boat 
launch.  He would like to make sure that item is included in further discussions. 
 
Chair Eiden said they can include that in their reviews. 
 
Commissioner Joyce felt that area was marshier than anywhere else. 
 
Mr. Sampson said the person that owns the Marina north of the swing bridge is ok with having a public boat 
launch there. 
 
Vice Chair Schueller asked if he also has a launch? 
 
Mr. Sampson said he does, but would still be ok with a public launch as well. 
 
C.  Department Happenings 
 
Director Carlson wanted to highlight one item, the annual planning calendar.  It lays out the year for some 
presentations.  Some additional staff members will be in to introduce themselves and give a quick update on 
their departments.  There are budget items included as well, and when you will need to select a Chair and Vice 
Chair.  He has also included a couple of park tours. Those can be done prior to our regularly scheduled 
meetings. 
 
Mr. Sampson stated, in terms of notification, that there was a sign up sheet at one of the meetings where 
residences could list their names and addresses to get notified.  He seems to be the only one that is notified and 
then supplies others in his area with the information.  He asked if they can locate that list; please notify others of 
upcoming meetings. 
 
Vice Chair Schueller asked how much the parks get used in the winter? 
 
Director Carlson said the parks are open year-round.  They open at 7:00 a.m. and close at 10:00 p.m.   
 
Vice Chair Schueller asked if you can ski at the Golf Course? 
 
Director Carlson said they don’t groom the trail but it is open to ski. 
 
10.  COMMISSION COMMENTS: 
 
Commissioner T. Johnson had no comment. 
 
Commissioner Boehmer had no comment. 
 
Commissioner Huffman complimented the people that work and care for the parks.  They are a great bunch of 
people doing a great job. 
 
Commissioner Joyce had no comment. 
 
Vice Chair Schueller said the Parks and Recreation Staff, along with Director Carlson, did a good job on the 
Parks and Trails Guide.  He appreciated the fact that it is his home featured on the cover. 
 
Director Carlson thanked him for his comment.  He did not know that was his home, but they felt it was a great 
picture.  He said this guide was produced in-house by Bethany Adams and Staff.  It was mailed to all residents 



Park & Rec. Advisory Commission Meeting  Wednesday, January 14, 2009 9

in town.  There are additional copies here at City Hall and we have enough for at least the next five years.  The 
guide lists where the parks are as well as its amenities and trails. 
 
Chair Eiden hopes people will use them as there is a lot of good information in them. 
 
Commissioner S. Johnson had no comment. 
 
Chair Eiden said this is a new year.  The good news is you don’t have to go far to find things to do.  We have 
plenty to offer in our own hometown. 
 
11.  ADJOURN 
 
Motion by Commissioner S. Johnson, seconded by Commissioner Huffman to adjourn the meeting at 8:40 
p.m. 
 
 


